
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  City Council Workshop & Meeting   
     October 7, 2019 

   Agenda 
 

 
                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  City Council Workshop 

A. General Assistance New Maximums – Holli Olivier (10 minutes) 

B. New Auburn Property Transfers – Eric Cousens (10 minutes)  

C. Agricultural Zone Discussion  

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Titus 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items - All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen so requests, in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on 
the Agenda.  

 
II.          Minutes – September 16, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 
 
III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• Make a Wish Presentation 
 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 

related to City business which is not on this agenda.   
                     

V. Unfinished Business  
 
1. Order 111-09162019 

Approving the renewal of the Auto Graveyard/Junkyard permit for Morris Auto Parts located at 940 
Washington St. N. 

 
VI. New Business  

 
1. Order 114-10072019 

Authorizing the City Clerk to waive the $100 business license fee for Saint Dominic Academy’s Annual 
Holiday Festival. 
 

2. Resolve 10-10072019 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Supporting the Feeding Auburn Initiative Microgrants Program. 

 
VII. Reports 

a.  Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business which is not on this agenda. 

 
IX. Executive Session – Personnel matter (City Manager’s review), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 405(6)(A) 
 
X. Adjournment 
 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   10/7/2019      
 
Author:   Holli Olivier, Manager – Health & Social Services 
 

Subject:   Adoption of Appendices for General Assistance, Effective 10/1/2019 through 9/30/2020 
 
Information:  I’m seeking the approval of the new General Assistance Appendix A (the GA overall maximums), Appendix 
B (the food maximums), Appendix C (Lewiston / Auburn MSA Rental Maximums), and Appendix H (the funeral 
maximums).  Once the appendices A-C and H are adopted, they will replace the FY 18/19 maximums for those 
appendices 
 
These maximums are established as a matter of State law based on certain federal and HUD fair market values.  These 
appendices are filed with the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with Title 22, M.R.S.A. § 
4305(4). 
 
**By adopting the new appendices A-C and H, the program will be in compliance and receive the 70% reimbursement 
from the State** 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  The overall maximums (Appendix A) is an average increase of $79.00 per household per month.  
The food maximums (Appendix B) is an average increase approximately $5.00 per individual per month.  The housing 
maximums (Appendix C) is an average increase of $71.00 per household per month.  And the funeral maximums 
(Appendix H) in an average increase of $295.00 per individual. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Approval of changes to the General Assistance Appendices A-C & H as required by State 
statue and ordinance.  First reading:  10/21/19.  Second reading:  11/4/2019. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  This is a yearly approval needed by council when changes are made to the appendices 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:     
 

 
Attachments:  Health & Social Services Budget FY19/20 New Maximums  
Appendix A, Overall Maximums 
Appendix B, Food Maximums 
Appendix C, Housing Maximums 
Appendix H, Funeral Maximums 
Adoption form for 19-20 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE  
 

Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance 
Annual Adjustment of Maximum Benefits 
 

Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby amends Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, 
Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance Annual Adjustment of Maximum 
Benefits to incorporate the following maximum levels of assistance to be effective on 
and after October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020, as follows: 
 
Sec. 24-23. - Annual adjustment of maximum benefits.  
(a)   Each year the Maine Municipal Association provides for the city three appendices providing 

maximum benefits applicable for the period beginning October 1 and ending September 30 
as mandated by state law and based on certain federal values effective on October 1 of each 
year, as follows:  

(1)  Appendix A, a listing of overall maximum levels of general assistance relating to all 
Maine municipalities.  

(2)   Appendix B, a listing of maximum levels of assistance for food.  

(3)   Appendix C, a listing of maximum levels for heated and unheated housing.  

(4) Appendix H, a listing of funeral maximums, including burials and cremations. 

(b)  The portion of these annual appendices applicable to the city, as adopted each year by the 
city council, are made a part of this chapter as though fully set forth herein and a copy 
thereof is available in the office of the city clerk.  

Editor's note— The appendices referred to in this section are not codified but are available in 
the office of the city clerk.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

 
 
 

       Appendix A – GA Overall Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2019 – 9/30/2020 
 
TOTAL NUMBER IN HOUSEHOLD:         1  2      3  4       5 

Lewiston/Auburn MSA: 
Auburn, Durham, Greene, Leeds, Lewiston, Lisbon, 
Livermore, Livermore Falls, Mechanic Falls, Minot, 
Poland, Sabattus, Turner, Wales 

 
725 

 
783 

 
1,007 

 
1,265 

 
1,606 

*Add $75.00 for each additional person* 
 

       Appendix B – Food Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2019 – 9/30/2020 
 
Please Note:  The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the 
U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan. As of October 1, 2019, those amounts are: 
 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 
   

1 45.12 194 
2 82.56 355 
3 118.37 509 
4 150.23 646 
5 178.60 768 
6 214.19 921 
7 236.74                        1,018 
8 270.70 

 
                       1,164 
 

**Note:  For each additional person, add $144 per month. 
 

       Appendix C – Rental Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2019 – 9/30/2020 
 

Lewiston/Auburn  MSA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 133 574 156 671 

1 137 591 167 719 

2 177 763 216 929 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

3 224 965 273 1,174 

4 288 1,240 348 1,497 

APPENDIX H – FUNERAL MAXIMUMS 
Effective 10/01/2019 – 9/30/2020 

 
Burial Maximums 

 

The maximum amount of general assistance granted for the purpose of burial is $1,475.  

Additional costs may be allowed by the GA administrator, where there is an actual cost, for: 

 

• The wholesale cost of a cement liner if the cemetery by-laws require one; 

• The opening and closing of the grave site; and 

• A lot in the least expensive section of the cemetery.  If the municipality is able 

to provide a cemetery lot in a municipally owned cemetery or in a cemetery 

under municipal control, the cost of the cemetery lost in any other cemetery 

will not be paid by the municipality 

 

The municipality’s obligation to provide funds for burial purposes is limited to a reasonable 

calculation of the funeral director’s direct costs, not to exceed the maximum amounts of 

assistance described in this section.  Allowable burial expenses are limited to: 

 

• Removal of the body from a local residence or institution 

• A secured death certificate or obituary 

• Embalming 

• A minimum casket 

• A reasonable cost for transportation 

• Other reasonable and necessary specified direct costs, as itemized by the 

funeral director and approved by the municipal administrator 

 

 

Cremation Maximums 

 

The maximum amount of assistance granted for a cremation shall be $1,025.  Additional costs 

may be allowed by the GA administrator where there is an actual cost, for: 

 

• A cremation lot in the least expensive section of the cemetery 

• A reasonable cost for a burial urn not to exceed $55 

• Transportation costs borne by the funeral director at a reasonable rate per mile 

for transporting the remains to and from the cremation facility. 





 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    October 7, 2019 
 
Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  New Auburn Village Center Land Swap Agreements 
 
Information:  As the Council is aware, the New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) Project has been significant planning effort 
dating back to it’s beginnings in the 2009 New Auburn Master Plan, revised in the 2014 NAVC Study of Alternatives and 
the 2017 Engineering and Design Contract for the final construction documents.  Acquisitions and demolitions have 
occurred over that time using CIP and CDBG Funds.  The last few years have appropriated CIP, TIF and Grant funds as 
part of the annual budgeting process.  We have now awarded the construction project to J. Pratt Construction and the 
work will begin soon.  This fall’s work will likely be limited to grading the site and the installation of the St Louis Bell 
Tower. We are at the point where the last remaining land transfers planned for the projects need to be completed and 
we wanted to provide an update to the Council.  There are three remaining exchanges between the City and private 
property owners that have minimal, if any, overall effect on values of the properties.  The reason that we are bringing 
this back to the Council is that one of the property owners is a City Councilor and we want to ensure transparency and 
avoid any perceived conflicts. Councilor Leroy Walker owns the property at 41 Broad Street he too wants to make sure 
that the Council is aware, the process is transparent and that there are no perceived conflicts.   
 
The value of the transfer between the City and Councilor Walker has little to no impact on the assessed value of the 
parcels.  Councilor Walker receives 1,666 square feet of land with a sewer easement that severely limits the 
development potential but that could allow parking expansions; The City receives a parcel totaling 1,547 square feet 
that will be used as parking in the overall NAVC Plan.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None. Facilitates the larger projects at no additional cost to the City 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: We ask that Council acknowledge the transfers being brought to their attention and allow 
staff to proceed with the transfers to keep the project on schedule.  If there are concerns, 2 or more Councilors can refer 
the item to the Ethics Committee prior to proceeding.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: Budget and CIP Meetings 2012 - present and, monthly reports and periodic updates to 
the Council.   
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:        
 

Attachments: Plans and deeds.   
 



















ANDROSCOGGIN RIVER

15

47

41

"PONTBRIAND'S"

"HAPPY DAYS DINER"

67

19-21

15

7

L

I

T

T

L

E

 

A

N

D

R

O

S

C

O

G

G

I

N

 

R

I

V

E

R

61

"NEW AUBURN

SOCIAL CLUB"

"SELCO PLUMBING &

HEATING SUPPLIES"

2 STORY

APARTMENTS

"NORTH

ATLANTIC

MEDICAL"

"FIRE HOUSE

GRILLE"

"ALL ABOUT YOU

SALON"

3 STORY

APARTMENTS

3

0

3

1

5

2

5

3

5

4

55

5

6

5

7

P

C

 

+

2

9

.

0

1

PC
 +60.33

P
T +24.56

P

T

 

+

9

8

.

6

9

+

6

1

.

5

2

0

S

E

C

O

N

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

B

R

O

A

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

RIVERW
AY

G

R

E

E

N

W

A

Y

 

T

R

A

I

L

P
B

PB

PB
PB

P
B

P
B

P
B

42 HHR

N

5

1

°

3

6

'
0

6

"

W

N

3

8

°

2

3

'
5

4

"

E

Book 9062, Page 251

City Of Auburn

N/F

(

t

y

p

i

c

a

l

)

A

b

u

t

t

e

r

'
s

 

P

r

o

p

e

r

t

y

 

L

i

n

e

A

p

p

a

r

e

n

t

 

L

o

c

a

t

i

o

n

 

O

f

(

t

y

p

i

c

a

l

)

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

U

t

i

l

i

t

y

 

L

i

n

e

s

Utility Pole

w/Guy Wire

Book 4496, Page 315

City Of Auburn

N/F

Book 8763, Page 139

City Of Auburn

N/F

Book 2906, Page 23

City Of Auburn

N/F

(typical)

(

t

y

p

i

c

a

l

)

F

o

r

m

e

r

 

P

r

o

p

e

r

t

y

 

L

i

n

e

A

p

p

r

o

x

i

m

a

t

e

 

L

o

c

a

t

i

o

n

 

O

f

L

i

n

e

 

C

r

e

a

t

e

d

 

P

e

r

 

B

o

o

k

 

2

2

3

,

 

P

a

g

e

 

1

1

5

,

 

D

a

t

e

d

 

6

-

1

0

-

1

9

0

8

L

i

n

e

 

C

r

e

a

t

e

d

 

P

e

r

 

B

o

o

k

 

1

6

5

,

 

P

a

g

e

 

8

1

,

 

D

a

t

e

d

 

5

-

6

-

1

8

9

9

L

i

n

e

 

C

r

e

a

t

e

d

 

P

e

r

 

B

o

o

k

 

7

5

,

 

P

a

g

e

 

3

5

2

,

 

D

a

t

e

d

 

8

-

1

-

1

8

8

5

Found 7/8" Iron Pipe

(1" down)

Found 7/8" Iron Pipe

(flush)

Magnetic Signal

- Below Grade

Found 2 1/2" Iron Pipe

(6" down)

P

e

r

 

P

l

a

n

 

R

e

f

e

r

e

n

c

e

 

3

L

o

t

 

4

P

e

r

 

P

l

a

n

 

R

e

f

e

r

e

n

c

e

 

3

L

o

t

 

5

S

5

1

°

3

6

'
0

6

"

E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

0

0

.
0

0

'

Book 8683, Page 113

Book 9739, Page 137

City Of Auburn

N/F

Book 9658, Page 56

City Of Auburn

N/F

Found 1 1/4" Iron Pipe

(30" up/leaning)

(
F

i
e
l
d

 
L

o

c
a

t
e
d

 
D

e
c
e
m

b

e
r
 
2

0

1
5

)

A

t
 
B

o

t
t
o

m

 
O

f
 
B

a
n

k

F

o

u

n

d

 
1

 
3

/

4

"

 
I

r

o

n

 
P

i
p

e

 
(

f
l
u

s

h

)

P

o

s

t

s

F

e

n

c

e

Angle Point In Right Of Way 

Apparent Angle Point In Right Of Way 

Right Of Way 

Apparent Right Of Way 

(See Plan Reference 18)

N

6

4

°

5

2

'
1

1

"

W

1

0

2

.
6

6

'

S

7
1
°
4

4

'
2

8

"
W

6

0

.
2

8

'

S
1
5

°
3

7
'
2

1
"
W

2
1
.
5

6
'

1

0

0

.
5

5

'

S

6

4

°

5

2

'
1

1

"

E

4

2

.
9

5

'

2

0

'
 
W

i
d

e

 
 
 
 
 
R

i
g

h

t

 
O

f
 
W

a

y

P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
 
 
 
 
8

7

6

3

,
 
P

a

g

e

 
1

3

9

N

6

4

°

5

2

'
1

1

"

W

8

8

.
4

1

'

S

3

8

°

2

3

'
5

4

"

W

5

2

.
4

0

'

1

8

.
0

0

'

2

0

.

7

8

'

1

3

.

1

6

'

6

2

.
6

8

'

N

2

4

°

3

5

'
2

2

"

E

5

8

.
4

4

'

P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

3

8

,
 
P

a

g

e

 
5

1

7

Auburn Sewerage District Easement

A

u

b

u

r

n

 
S

e

w

e

r

a

g

e

 
D

i

s

t

r

i

c

t

 
E

a

s

e

m

e

n

t

 

5

0

.

0

0

'

 

P

e

r

 

B

o

o

k

 

4

2

2

,

 

P

a

g

e

 

5

8

3

,

 

D

a

t

e

d

 

7

-

2

7

-

1

9

3

3

 "Carpentier Block"

(

S

e

e

 

N

o

t

e

 

1

9

)

(See Note 18)

C

e

n

t

e

r

l
i
n

e

 
o

f
 
2

0

'
 
W

i
d

e

 
S

e

w

e

r

 
E

a

s

e

m

e

n

t

A

p

p

r

o

x

i
m

a

t

e

 
L

o

c

a

t

i
o

n

 
P

e

r

 
G

I

S

 
O

f

S

e

e

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

3

9

1

,
 
P

a

g

e

s

 
1

3

8

 
&

 
1

3

9

P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

4

2

,
 
P

a

g

e

 
1

5

8

4

'
 
W

i
d

e

 
R

i
g

h

t

 
O

f
 
W

a

y

3

'
 
W

i
d

e

 
R

i
g

h

t

 
O

f
 
W

a

y

 

(

S

e

e

 
P

l

a

n

 
R

e

f

e

r

e

n

c

e

 
1

6

)

7

7

.
0

0

'

Per Book 1141, Page 291

Gravel

E

d

g
e
 
O

f
 
W

a
t
e
r

S

3

8

°

2

3

'
5

4

"

W

F/K/A

 Per Plan Reference 17

Per Book 650, Page 276

 Per Plan Reference 17

 Per Deeds

9

'
 

W

i

d

e

 

R

i

g

h

t

 

O

f

 

W

a

y

 

N

5

1

°

0

4

'
1

8

"

W

 
-

 
6

3

.
7

6

'

3

.
3

7

'

S

3

7

°

1

8

'
4

6

"

W

F

o

u

n

d

 
1

 
3

/

4

"

 
I

r

o

n

 
P

i
p

e

 
(

1

3

"

 
d

o

w

n

)

8

'

7

'

 
P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

4

8

,
 
P

a

g

e

 
4

8

7

 
P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

6

0

,
 
P

a

g

e

 
4

1

8

N

5

1

°

3

6

'
0

6

"

W

3

6

.

3

0

'

 
P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

1

4

1

,

 
P

a

g

e

 
2

9

2

Building Corner On

R/W Line

d

a

t

e

d

 
2

-

2

7

-

1

9

7

9

 
&

 
2

-

2

1

-

1

9

7

9

D

a

t

e

d

 
9

-

1

8

-

1

9

7

2

1

,

9

9

5

 

S

.

F

.

5,804 S.F.

8,253 S.F.

D

a

t

e

d

 
 
7

-

3

1

-

2

0

1

3

D

a

t

e

d

 
4

-

4

-

1

8

9

1

8

'
 
W

i
d

e

 
R

i
g

h

t

 
O

f
 
W

a

y

7

'
 
W

i
d

e

 
R

i
g

h

t

 
O

f
 
W

a

y

D

a

t

e

d

 
2

-

1

1

-

1

8

9

1

Dated 12-20-1971

D

a

t

e

d

 
7

-

2

1

-

1

8

9

2

D

a

t

e

d

 
7

-

2

1

-

1

8

9

2

Dated 1-26-1951

L

i
n

e

 
C

r

e

a

t

e

d

 
P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

3

2

,
 

P

a

g

e

 
2

9

8

,
 
D

a

t

e

d

 
3

-

2

3

-

1

8

8

9

L

i
n

e

 
C

r

e

a

t

e

d

 
P

e

r

 
B

o

o

k

 
1

3

6

,
 

P

a

g

e

 
2

1

5

,
 
D

a

t

e

d

 
1

2

-

4

-

1

8

8

9

L

i

n

e

 

C

r

e

a

t

e

d

 

P

e

r

 

B

o

o

k

 

1

2

8

,

P

a

g

e

 

5

4

1

,

 

D

a

t

e

d

 

9

-

2

4

-

1

8

8

8

Lines created per Book 422, Page 583, dated 7-27-1933, the

(

S

e

e

 

N

o

t

e

 

2

0

)

parcel was described as 3' x 62' with a 9' x 62' right of way.

Per Book 650, Page 276, dated January 26, 1951, the lines

of the parcel and the right of way followed the face of the

brick wall of the Carpentier Block. This office has held

the brick building faces for location of said lines.

(

S

e

e

 

N

o

t

e

 

1

3

)

(

S

e

e

 
N

o

t
e

 
1

3

)

S

h

e

d

(See Note 21)

Gas

50
0 

So
ut

hb
or

ou
gh

 D
riv

e,
 S

ui
te

 1
05

B
So

ut
h 

Po
rtl

an
d,

 M
ai

ne
 0

41
06



 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    October 7th, 2019    
Author:  Peter Crichton, City Manager 
Subject: Proposed Amendment to the Agriculture and Resource Protection Zone 
 
Information:  Two specific issues regarding the AG Zone were outcomes of the September 30th Workshop:     1) The 50% 
income rule requirement in the definition of a “farm” and 2) the use of non-conforming lots 3-10 acres in size. 
Councilors and the Mayor are encouraged to view the enclosed link and attached power point presentation in advance 
of Monday’s Workshop.  

1) Farm Definition: Replacing the 50% Income Requirement- A suggestion was made to use the Maine Land Use 
requirement for farmland (Directly from the Maine Revenue Website): 

In the Farmland program, the property owner is required to have at least five contiguous acres in their parcel of land. The 
land must be used for farming, agriculture or horticulture and can include woodland and wasteland. Additionally, the 
parcel must contribute at least $2,000 gross income from farming activities each year. 

This will be one of the primary goals of the October 7th Workshop with a few slides highlighted from the presentation 
that was given to the Planning Board on 4/9/19 by Maine Department of Agriculture official Stephanie Gilbert. 

2) Use of Non-Conforming (3 – 10 acre) Lots in the AG Zone : At the last Workshop staff recommended as one 
possible direction that the Planning Board be able to make exceptions on a case by case basis for properties in 
the non-conforming lots. As a result, there was a discussion by Councilors and the Mayor on using the following 
possible criteria for determining which properties would receive an exception: viable farmland, approval of 
abutters, “contract” zoning, and the planning board making the decision on the exceptions. Staff will provide 
comments on these criteria and encourage discussion by Councilors to prepare language for a rough draft on a 
proposed ordinance in advance of the October 21st Workshop when there will be a more comprehensive review. 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 
 

Staff Recommended Action:  Council discussion. 
 

Previous Meetings and History: 
September 30th, 2019 Workshop 
September 23rd, 2019 Workshop 
September 16th, 2019 Workshop 
 

City Manager Comments:  I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attachment(s): 
MRS Bulletin #20- Farmland Tax Law 
Stephanie Gilbert Power Point to the Planning Board- 4/9/19 
Video Link to Stephanie Gilbert Presentation to the Planning Board- 4/9/19 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=28HS37VqIeI


1 

 

MAINE REVENUE SERVICES 
PROPERTY TAX DIVISION 

PROPERTY TAX BULLETIN NO. 20 
 

FARMLAND TAX LAW 

REFERENCE:  36 M.R.S. §§ 1101 - 1121 
June 1, 2017; replaces June 22, 2015 revision 

 
 
1. General Information.   
 
 The Farm and Open Space Tax Law provides for the valuation of land that has been classified as 

farmland based on its current use as farmland, rather than its potential fair market value for uses other 
than agricultural.  This bulletin explains certain features of this law.  As used in this bulletin, the term 
"assessor" means the assessor or board of assessors of a municipality, the chief assessor of a primary 
assessing area or the State Tax Assessor in the case of the unorganized territory. 

 
 
2. Valuation. 
 
 The assessor for each taxing jurisdiction must establish the 100% valuation per acre of farmland based 

on the current use of that land for agricultural or horticultural purposes.  The values adopted should be 
based on such considerations as farmland rentals, farmer-to-farmer sales, soil types and quality, 
commodity values, topography, and state-developed guidelines for agricultural valuation.  These values 
should not reflect potential uses of the land other than agricultural or horticultural.  In addition, the 
values should not reflect either road or shore frontage.  See Guidelines for Agricultural Valuation at the 
end of this bulletin. 

 
 The assessor must record the value of farmland as established under this guidance and the law and the 

value at which the farmland would have been assessed had it not been classified as farmland.  Values 
must be recorded in the municipal office of the town in which the farmland is located. 

 
 
3.  Requirement for Classification. 
 

A.  Minimum size.  A tract of land must contain at least five contiguous acres.   
 
B.  Use.  A tract of land must be used for farming, agricultural or horticultural activities, but may 
include woodland and wasteland within the tract.  Horticultural activity means the production of 
vegetables, tree fruits, small fruits, flowers, and woody or herbaceous plants. 
 
C.  Income Requirement.  A tract of land must generate a gross income of at least $2,000 per year from 
the sale of agricultural products in one of the two, or three of the five calendar years preceding the date 
of application for classification.  To determine whether you meet the income threshold, look at the two 



2 

 

previous calendar years.  If you earned at least $2,000 from farming in one of those years, you qualify.  
If you didn’t earn at least $2,000 in either of the two previous years, you must have earned at least 
$2,000 in each of the third, fourth, and fifth previous years.  Gross income is generally reported on your 
federal income tax return, Form 1040, on the line for farm income.  Gross income from the sale of 
agricultural products includes the value of commodities produced for consumption by the farm 
household.  The term “agricultural products” is defined in 7 M.R.S. § 152(2) as: 

  
"Agricultural products" means those plants and animals and their products that are 
useful to humans and includes, but is not limited to, forages and sod crops, grains and 
feed crops, dairy and dairy products, poultry and poultry products, bees and bees' 
products, livestock and livestock products and fruits, berries, vegetables, flowers, seeds, 
grasses and other similar products, or any other plant, animal or plant or animal 
products that supply humans with food, feed, fiber or fur. "Agricultural products" does 
not include trees grown and harvested for forest products. 
 

D.  Income Report.  Once qualified, an owner of farmland must file with the assessor by April 1 of each 
fifth year after qualification a statement of the gross income derived by either the owner or lessee in 
each of the previous five years from acreage classified as farmland. 

 
 
4. Provisional Classification. 
 
 The owner of farmland which meets all the requirements under section 3, except the gross income 

requirement, may apply for a two-year provisional classification as farmland.  The land must be 
provisionally classified and subject to the provisions of Farm and Open Space Tax Law. 

 
 If, at the end of the two-year period, the land does not qualify, the owner must pay a penalty.  The 

penalty is equal to  the taxes which would have been assessed had the property been assessed at its fair 
market value on April 1 for the two preceding tax years less the taxes paid during those two preceding 
years plus interest on the difference. 

 
 
5. General Provisions. 

 
A.  Filing.  Owners must file an application by April 1 of the year in which classification is first 
requested with the assessor of the jurisdiction where the property is located.  Annual filing is not 
necessary; however, an assessor may request the filing of a new application at any time.  The 
application must be accompanied by a map or sketch showing the different land classifications as well 
as non-farmland classification within the tract. 
 
B.  Notification of Classification.  The assessor must determine whether the land is subject to 
classification as farmland, identify the land based on the categories listed in the Guidelines for 
Agricultural Valuation at the end of this bulletin and notify the owner of the decision by June 1 of the 
year of application.  If the application is denied, the assessor must state the reasons for the denial in the 
decision notification to the applicant and provide the landowner an opportunity to amend the 
application to conform to the requirements of the statute. 
 
C.  Reclassification.  Landowners are required to give the assessor notice of any change in farmland 



3 

 

classification.  If a landowner does not give notice of a change in classification, the assessor must 
reclassify the parcel where the facts justify a change in classification or use. 
 
D.  Tax Rate.  Classified farmland shall be subject to the same property tax rate applicable to other 
property in the jurisdiction. 
 
E.  Valuation of Areas Other Than Farmland: 
 

(1)  Woodland.  The 100% valuation for farm woodland within a classified parcel must be the 
100% valuation per acre established for forest land according to the Tree Growth Tax Law.  
 
(2)  Other Areas.  Areas other than farmland must be assessed on the basis of fair market value. 
 

F. Farm Structures.  Building components of a farm, such as animal shelters, are normally 
considered part of the farm and the structures should be valued the same as other similar structures in 
the municipality.  While not specifically addressed in the law, when small accessory structures such as 
animal shelters are built upon classified farm land, statute does not compel the land under these 
structures to be withdrawn from classification.   

 
 
6. Appeal from Assessor. 

 
A.  Abatement Procedure.  Assessments made under this subchapter are subject to the abatement 
procedures provided by 36 M.R.S. § 841. The assessor, on written application within 185 days from 
date of commitment or on their own initiative within one year from date of commitment, may make 
such reasonable abatement as they think proper, provided the taxpayer has complied with § 706. 
 
B.  Notice of Decision.  The assessor shall, by June 1, notify an applicant that their application has been 
accepted or denied.  If an application is denied, the assessor shall state the reasons for the denial and 
provide the landowner an opportunity to amend the application to conform to the requirements of the 
law within 60 days. 
 
C.  State Board of Property Tax Review.  An application for review must be filed within 60 days from 
receipt of the assessor’s denial or within 60 days from the date the application for abatement was 
deemed to have been denied. 
 
D.  Superior Court.  Any party dissatisfied with the decision of the State Board of Property Tax Review 
may further appeal to Superior Court in the county where the property is located. 

 
 
7. Penalty; Withdrawal of Classification. 

 
A.  Change in Use.  If classified farmland no longer meets the requirement for classification, it may be 
withdrawn from classification by the assessor or at the request of the owner.  Any change in use 
disqualifying land for classification will result in the assessment of a penalty.   
 
B.  Exception.  Penalties will be applied as a result of a change in use and the withdrawal of a portion of 
a classified parcel except when withdrawal is caused by a transfer resulting from the exercise or 



4 

 

threatened exercise of the power of eminent domain.   
 
Change from farmland classification to open space classification or open space to farmland may not be 
penalized if the transferred parcel also meets the eligibility requirements of the new classification. 
 
C.  Determination of Penalty.  The penalty for withdrawal from farmland classification is an amount 
equal to the taxes which would have been assessed upon the land for the past five years, less all taxes 
which were actually paid during those five years, plus interest at the rate set annually by the 
municipality during those five years of classification. 

 
An owner of farmland that has been classified for five full years or more may pay any penalty owed in 
up to five equal annual installments with interest at the rate set by the town to begin 60 days after the 
date of the supplemental assessment.  For an owner paying the penalty under this procedure, the period 
during which the tax lien mortgage, including interest and costs, must be paid to avoid foreclosure and 
expiration of the right of redemption is 48 months from the filing date of the tax lien certificate.  The 
increased redemption term from the standard 18-month term is required in order to accommodate the 
enlarged time to pay under this procedure. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the recapture penalty for parcels transferred into farmland classification 
from either open space classification under the Tree Growth Tax Law (36 M.R.S. §§ 571 – 584-A) 
shall be the same as the prior classification if the time classified as farmland is 10 years or less. 
 
D.  Assessed Fair Market Value.  Assessed fair market value at the time of withdrawal is the assessed 
value of comparable property in the taxing jurisdiction adjusted by the declared assessment ratio (the 
ratio reported by the municipality on the most recent Municipal Valuation Return) to 100%. 

 
IMPORTANT 

 
In no event may the penalty be less than the minimum required by the Constitution of Maine, Article IX, 
Section 8: 
 

“a minimum penalty equal to the tax which would have been imposed over the 5 years preceding 
that change of use had that real estate been assessed at its highest and best use, less all taxes paid 
on that real estate over the preceding 5 years, and interest, upon such reasonable and equitable 
basis as the Legislature shall determine.  Any statutory or constitutional penalty imposed as a 
result of a change of use, whether imposed before or after the approval of this subsection, shall 
be determined without regard to the presence of minerals." 

 
 
8. Valuation Guidelines and Program Promotion. 
 
 The Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry, working with Maine Revenue Services, and 

representatives of municipal assessors and farmers, must prepare valuation guidelines to assist local 
assessors in the valuation of farmland.  The suggested guidelines include values for cropland, orchard 
land, pastureland and horticultural land.  The values recommended are designed to enlighten Maine 
citizens to the existence of the Farm and Open Space Tax Law as well as providing regional 
information to local farm organizations and municipal tax assessors. 

 



5 

 

NOTE:  This bulletin is intended solely as advice to assist persons in determining, exercising or complying with their legal rights, duties or 
privileges.  If further information is needed, contact the Property Tax Division of Maine Revenue Services. 

 
MAINE REVENUE SERVICES 
PROPERTY TAX DIVISION 

PO BOX 9106  
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04332-9106 

TEL: (207) 624-5600 
 
The Department of Administrative and Financial Services does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission to, access to, or 
operation of its programs, services or activities.  This material can be made available in alternate formats by contacting the Department's 
ADA Coordinator at (207) 624-8288(voice) or V/TTY: 7-1-1. 

 
(Published under Appropriation No. 1037.1)  

 
 

GUIDELINES FOR AGRICULTURAL VALUATION 
 
The following guidelines were derived by the Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry (ACF) and Maine 
Revenue Services (MRS) after review of commentary from the assessing and agricultural communities. 
 
The categories listed vary somewhat relative to language found in the law; our attempt to reconcile that language with 
typical Maine farming practices follows. 
 
Suggested values from ACF and MRS, developed through analysis of sales and income attributable to farms, are 
posted separately on the Property Tax Division website. 
 
Upon consideration of the various adjustment factors relative to regional or statewide averages, an assessor may elect to 
develop local values.  However, the assessor must substantiate any variation in assessment of farmland from the 
recommended values. 
 
Cropland.  Land used for field grown crops such as a typical Maine potato farm.  This would include usual crops 
grown in rotation with potatoes - corn for grain, small grains, legumes, broccoli, etc. 
 
Orchard Land.  Land devoted to the growth and cultivation of trees bearing edible fruit.  There should be a minimum 
stocking density equivalent to 60 trees per acre. 
 

 
Pastureland.  Land devoted to the production of forage plants consumed by animals.  This includes grazing land, hay, 
ensilage, corn for ensilage and any other crops grown for forage. 
 
 
Horticultural Land (edible).  Land used for intensive vegetable and small fruit production, market gardening, 
strawberries, raspberries, high-bush blueberries, etc. 
 
 
Horticultural Land (ornamental).  Land used for production of planted and cultivated Christmas trees, flowers, sod, 
shrubs, trees and general nursery stock.  Excluded from this category are trees harvested for forest products. 
 
Blueberry Land.  Land devoted to production of wild low-bush blueberries. 
 
 

 
 



6 

 

ADJUSTMENT FACTORS 
 
Soil type, conservation measures, convenience and proximity to the farmstead, field size and shape, slopes, drainage, 
aeration, accessibility to and choice of markets, rocks, climate, commodity yield and price. 



Planning Board 4-9-19

Agriculture & Resource Protection Zoning District Amendments

Workshop II



Questions:

A. What constitutes a “farm” business as opposed to a 
hobby or garden?

B. What have other communities done to meet the 
same goals or address the same issues?

C. Should “Forestry” be treated differently than AG 
and why?

D. What recommendations did the 2017-18 consultant 
study & Ad Hoc committee make?

E. How many parcels wld be impacted?  Where would 
that be?

F. Is there a threshold (# of trips, HH’s, etc.) that wld
trigger additional city expenditures (road repair, 
emergency service, schools & school bus service)?



Invited Experts on 
Questions a & b

Maine Dpt.of
Ag.Conservation & 
Foresty; Androscoggin 
Land Trust 



What constitutes a 
“farm” business 
as opposed to a 
hobby or garden?



Farmland means any tract or tracts of land,
including woodland and wasteland, of at
least 5 contiguous acres on which farming
or agricultural activities have contributed to
a gross annual farming income of at least
$2,000 per year from the sales value of
agricultural products as defined in Title 7,
section 152, subsection 2 in one of the 2, or
3 of the 5, calendar years preceding the date
of application for classification. The farming
or agricultural activity and income derived
from that activity may be achieved by either
the owner or a lessee of the land.



Farm means the land, plants, animals, 
buildings, structures, ponds and 
machinery used in the commercial 
production of agricultural products. (6) 

Farm – the land, buildings and machinery 
used in commercial production of farm 
products. (10)

Farm or Farming Operation – the 
aggregate of all agricultural land, 
equipment and all related facilities, crops 
and animals, regardless of their location or 
ownership, that form part of an 
integrated agricultural business or 
operation.  (565)



• Farm Products – Animals, as well 
as food, feed, fiber, forage and 
oilseed crops that are useful to 
humans, including but not limited 
to, forages and sod crops, grains 
and food crops, dairy products, 
poultry and poultry products, bees, 
livestock and livestock products, 
manure or compost, and fruits, 
berries, vegetables, flowers, seeds, 
grasses, fuel crops and other 
similar products. (10) 

Farm Products – Animals, as well as 
food, feed, fiber, forage and oilseed 
crops that are useful to humans, 
including but not limited to, forages and 
sod crops, grains and food crops,          
dairy products, poultry and poultry 
products, bees, livestock and livestock 
products, manure or compost,                
and fruits, berries, vegetables,               
flowers, seeds,                                             
grasses,                                                        
fuel crops                                                     
and other                                                       
similar                                                        
products. (10) 



Farm Operation – A set of
activities that occur on a farm
in connection with commercial
production of farm products
including, but not limited to,
operations giving rise to noise,
odors, dust, fumes, operation
of machinery, irrigation pumps,
ground and aerial seeding,
ground spraying, composting of
material produced by the farm
or to be used at least in part on
the farm, disposal of manure,
the application of chemical
fertilizers, soil amendments,
conditioners or pesticides and
the employment of farm labor.
(10)



Farm operation means a condition or activity that
occurs on a farm in connection with the commercial
production of agricultural products and includes, but
is not limited to, operations giving rise to noise, odors,
dust, insects and fumes; operation of machinery and
irrigation pumps; disposal of manure; agricultural
support services; and the employment and use of
labor. (6)



Androscoggin County    2012 USDA Ag Census

2012 2007 % change

Number of Farms 463 378 + 22

Land in Farms 59,446 acres 50,844 acres        + 17

Average Size of Farm 128 acres 135 acres - 5

Market Value of Products Sold   $53,831,000 $68,445,000 - 21

Crop Sales $11,875,000 (22 percent)

Livestock Sales $41,956,000 (78 percent)

Average Per Farm $116,266 $181,071 - 36

Government Payments $445,000 $487,000 - 9

Average Per Farm Receiving Payments 

$6,186 $8,550 - 28



"Agricultural products" does not include trees grown and harvested for forest products.  
(Title 7, section 152, subsection 2) (Ch 6)



What have other 
communities done 
to meet the same 
goals or address the 
same issues?



13

OPERATIONS & MANAGEMENT 
Major Environmental Laws Affecting Maine Agriculture

• Surface Water Quality

• Groundwater Quality

• Air Quality

• Solid Waste and Hazardous Waste

• Pesticides and Chemigation

• Wildlife Protection

• Soil and Water Conservation Guidelines regarding the 
Creation of New Agricultural Fields of the Expansion of 
Existing Agricultural Fields in Forested Areas



14

OPERATIONS & MANAGEMENT
Agricultural Compliance Program & Right to Farm

• Benefits Farmers and the Public

• Complaints between farmers, or between 
farmers and their neighbors or others are 
resolved in a meaningful and timely way by 
the adoption or modification of BMPs

• Helps to keep farms and other agricultural 
businesses operating

• Retains land in agricultural production

Odors
Manure handling
Manure storage
Animal carcasses
Dust
Livestock welfare 
Insects
Impairments to water quality
Cull potatoes
Noise issues
Others



Five (5) contiguous acres = farming or agricultural 
activities use

• Crops/Livestock/Products 

• Year-Round operational Activities

Structures additional acreage 

• Residence for Farm Family and Farm Labor

• Storage/Housing for Livestock, Crops & 
Equipment 

Generates at least $2,000 annual gross income. 
($1,000 to $5300 USDA)

FARMLAND
Maine Farmland Property Tax Program



Farmland Property Tax Summary – Maine Revenue Service

2017 2015 

5,589 Parcels 5,240 Parcels

126,907 Acres Farmland 117,754 Acres Farmland 

172,088 Acres Woodland         158,744 Acres Woodland  

6,029 Acres First Classified                          6,737 Acres First Classified

33 Parcels (2,018 acres) were withdrawn @ $90,402



Any town in Maine may develop and codify a Voluntary Municipal Farm Support Program to
enter into "farm support arrangements" with eligible farmland owners. Those farmland
owners who are formally accepted by a town's legislative body, may then grant a 20-year
agricultural conservation easement to the town in exchange for full or partial reimbursement
of property taxes on their farmland and farm buildings during that 20 year period.

LAND
Voluntary Municipal Farm Support Program M.R.S. 7 Ch2-C



Four Typologies own/operate 70% of all of Maine’s  Farmland

Off-Farm Occupation 27%

Retirement Farm 21%

Small Family Farm <$150K
16%

Small Family Farm >$150-$349K 
6%

Types with fewer 
“Beginning Farmers”  30%

1,454,104 Total Land in Farms



Four Typologies earn 23% of all Farm Income

Off-Farm 
Occupation 5%

Retirement Farm
5%

Small Family Farm 
<$150K

7%

Small Family Farm 
>$150-$349K

6%

Four Types with fewer 
"Beginning Farmers"

(sales >$350K and non-
family farms) earn 77% of 

farm income in Maine

$810,241,000 Total Gross Cash Farm Income



Four Typologies include most of Maine’s Beginning Farmers

Retirement Farms - Small farms whose operators report
they are retired, although they continue to farm on a small
scale.

Off-Farm Occupation Farms - Small farms whose operators
report a primary occupation other than farming. The
category also includes a small number of farms whose
operators do not consider themselves in the labor force.

Small Family Farms – Gross Cash Farm Income (GCFI)
divided into two subcategories based on gross cash farm
income:

GCFI < $150,000
GCFI >$150,000 to $350,000



• Farm Products – Animals, as well as food, feed, fiber, forage and oilseed crops that 
are useful to humans, including but not limited to, forages and sod crops, grains and 
food crops, dairy products, poultry and poultry products, bees, livestock and 
livestock products, manure or compost, and fruits, berries, vegetables, flowers, 
seeds, grasses, fuel crops and other similar products. (10) 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION + 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

• Co-Marketing campaigns 

• Tourism & Events

• Bonding to protect farmland & make it 
affordable to next generation farmers

• Farmland + Open Space + Residential 
Subdivision

• TIFF’s to Producers & Processors

• Protect & sell to local farmers

• Water Districts + Land Trusts

• Investment Development Funds

• Listening to farmers – as owners of local 
businesses - then finding funds/funding 
mechanisms to help support agricultural 
economic development                                                                                                         



Thank you!

Stephanie Gilbert, Division of Agricultural Resource Development, Farm Viability and Farmland Protection
Mark Hedrich, Division of Animal and Plant Health Nutrient Management Program Coordinator

David Rocque, Division of Agricultural Resource Development, State Soil Scientist



D.  2017-18 Consultant & Ad Hoc Work on AG

The Ad-Hoc Committee was 
established to serve in an 

advisory role to the City Council, 
Planning Board and city staff 

during the length of the contract 
term with Crossroads Resource 

Center (the “consultant”).

Important Realization: 

“There is no simple answer - The 
policies to be enacted depend on 
the purposes the City wishes to 

uphold by protecting farmland. “ 



The Committee identified the following community 
priorities and strategic goals:

• Protect open space and rural landscape.  Forest land is a big part of the AGRP.

• Strengthen the agriculture and natural resource sector of the Auburn economy.

• The 50% income rule should be changed, however the alternative guidelines that 
could replace it are not simple.

• Infrastructure investment and incentives are needed to support the agricultural 
sector especially in an unpredictable environment; Need to determine the best 
incentives available.

• Protect farmland for agricultural uses and foster productive use of AGRP lands. 
Hold price of working agriculture lands low.

• Protect natural environment with special emphasis on Lake Auburn.



Primary Recommendations

1.  Creation of a permanent committee in the City of Auburn to advise City Council on policy 
development and implementation of agricultural, forestry, and resource protection (AFRC) 
initiatives, similar to Agricultural Commissions formed in other communities in Maine and 
nationwide.

2.  Elimination of the “50% income” rule within the AGRP Zone but replacing that policy only 
with a fully analyzed, researched, and targeted alternative that will serve long‐term goals and 
priorities for the AGRP Zone and economic sector.



E.   How many parcels could be impacted:
Potential Impacts of proposed text within 5yrs.

• Parcels could be divided after 1st 5yrs of enactment for the 
purposes of constructing a home (1) a.

• Division of land for residential purposes not allowed (does not 
address 10acre + “farmettes”- divided for purposes other 
than residential, 1. d.)

• Numbers calculated based on acreage and AG only road 
frontage on existing roads  



AG Parcels  –
no split-zoned 

lots :

Class
# of 

Parcels
% Ag 

Parcels
Average 

Acres
Total 
Acres

% Ag 
Parcel 
Acres

Average 
Road 

Frontage
Total Road 
Frontage

Vacant Parcels, > 10 acres, 
> 250 ft Road Frontage 100 13% 51 5,139 27% 1,290 125,137

Occupied Parcels, > 20 
acres, > 500 ft Road 
Frontage 57 7% 64 3,684 19% 1,942 110,671

Vacant Parcels, > 3 acres, 
Any Road Frontage* 10 1% 20 200 1% 144 1,437

Landlocked Parcels within 
Ag Zone 99 13% 20 1,949 10% 0 0

Parcels with no Road 
Frontage in Ag Zone, 
possible frontage other 
zone 143 18% 24 3,389 18% 0 0

Vacant or Occupied 
Parcels, don't meet 
dimensional standards 224 29% 5 1,215 6% 522 116,942

Other Parcels** 149 19% 23 3,461 18% 500 170,127

Total 782 19,037









F.   City Services
Schools & bus service

Road complaints

Response times 



CC Directive to Planning Board

“ …forward current draft amendment …as drafted 
by the Mayor’s Action Group…to the Conservation 
Commission and PB of review, Public Hearing and 
recommendations on how to proceed with the 
amendments”   



Next Steps:
Planning Board Public Hearing 
May 14 on Draft Amendment

Recommendations to 
City Council













 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 16, 2019  Orders: 111-09162019 
 
Author:  Kelsey Earle, License Specialist 
 

Subject:  Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewal  
 
Information:  This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. Reminder 
letters and applications were sent out 08/08/2019. Inspections have been made. Council approval is required for 
renewal of these licenses. Because the 5 listed below are renewals, they do not require a public hearing.  
 
Title 30-A, Sec. 3754 states “Municipal officers or county commissioners, as provided for in section 3753, shall hold a 
public hearing before granting a permit to establish a new automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or 
junkyard and may hold public hearings annually regarding the relicensing of these facilities”.  
 
Don’s No Preference Towing of L/A, Inc., dba Morris Auto Parts, 940 Washington St. North 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council consider approval of the renewal application only if the 
following conditions are met: 
 

1. Clean up visible materials on the riverbank and in the river.  
2. Install permanent flood plain line markers at the floodplain line to be determined by a surveyor at his cost.  
3. Remove any remaining vehicles with fluids from the 1% floodplain.  
 

Previous Meetings and History: The annual renewals were placed on the 9/16/2019 agenda. This one was postponed 
until the meeting of 10/7/2019.   

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:               
 

Attachments:  
1. Application 
2. Inspection Memo – David O’Connell (Fire Department) 
3. Inspection Memo #1– Eric Cousens (Economic and Community Development) 
4. Inspection Memo #2-Eric Cousens (Economic and Community Development) 
5. Order 111-09162019  

 











City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 

 

  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

To:   Kelsey Earle, Licensing Specialist / Deputy City Clerk 

From: Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 

Re: 2019 Junkyard Follow-up Morris Auto Parts License Inspection  

Date: October 2, 2019 

 

Based on your request this office inspected licensed junkyards that have applied for license renewals 

prior to the Councils consideration of their applications on September 16, 2019.  Inspections were 

completed on September 4th and 5th.  Since then, the Council received a complaint and photographs of 

concerns at Morris Auto Parts and tabled action on the requested license.  A follow up inspection was 

conducted on September 30, 2019.   

Over the last few years the inspections revealed that there were some violations and we have worked 

with this business to address them.   The fence along Washington Street was partly removed but the 

remaining piece, although unsightly, is not in violation of the Statute.  The license was issued in February 

2019 after achieving compliance.  On September 5th, the site was found to be meeting minimum  

junkyard requirements in the areas that were inspected.   

The photographs of the site included photos from the adjacent Little Androscoggin River and areas that 
are not visible from the property itself. The junkyard is sited on a wetland/floodplain area that has been 
filled over time between 1920 +/- and 2000+/-.  If the site was undisturbed, it would not be possible to 
site a new junkyard on this site under current standards and it may be difficult to find a less suitable site 
from an environmental perspective.   Over the years, floods have moved materials on the site and 
presumably into the Little Androscoggin River.  The City and the owner have made efforts to improve 
operations at the site to make future deposition of materials in the river less likely and to prevent the 
storage of vehicles with fluids in the areas mapped as 1% floodplain.  Staff has requested that the owner 
remove any visible materials from the water this fall.  Every future flood risks moving materials on the 
site and water currents could move loose materials into the river, however, current materials are 
setback from the edge to the extent that we can require. 
 
Because the site and setbacks from the river are existing and have existed since prior to current 
regulations we are limited to some degree to operational standard enforcement on this site.  The Site 
was once again found to meet most operational standards in the Junkyard Statute/Ordinance with 
exception of the storage of vehicles in the floodplain that still contain fluids.  Staff and the applicant are 
disputing the location of the line for the 1% flood plain, but between 6 and 14 vehicles were in violation 
as of the 9/30/19 inspection.  We will be asking for the placement of permanent markers at the 1% flood 
line to avoid this annual argument.   



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 111-09162019 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto 
Graveyard/Junkyard permit for Don’s No Preference Towing of L/A, Inc., dba Morris Auto Parts, 
940 Washington St. North. 
 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  October 7, 2019   Order:  114-10072019 
 
Author:  Kelsey Earle, License Specialist 
 

 

Subject:  Request by Saint Dominic Academy to waive the Flea Market/Craft Fair/Swap Meet/Bazaar license 
fee of $100.00 for the Annual St. Dom’s Holiday Festival.  
 

Information:  Saint Dominic Academy, 121 Gracelawn Road, a non-profit Catholic school for students in grades 
7-12, is requesting the Flea Market/Craft Fair license fee of $100.00 be waived for the Annual St. Dom’s 
Holiday Festival being held on November 2nd, from 9AM to 3PM.  
 
Because the letter came in late, they paid the fee and are asking for the fee to be reimbursed. 
 
Sec. 14-31. Fees; waiver. The fees for business licenses shall be paid by the owner or his agent in accordance 
with the business fee schedule established by the City Council. The City Council is the only authority allowed to 
waive fees prescribed by ordinance. An application for waiver of any fees must be presented in writing to the 
city clerk to be brought to the City Council at its next available meeting.   
 
City Budgetary Impacts: $100.00 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Consider waiving the fee.  
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:      
 

 
 
Previous Meetings and History: Fees have been waived in the past. 

 
Attachments:  

• Letter from Saint Dominic Academy 

• Flea Market/Craft Fair application 

• Order 114-10072019 
 





Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 114-10072019 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to waive the $100.00 Flea 
Market/Craft Fair business license for the Annual St. Dom’s Holiday Festival being held on 
November 02, 2019. 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   October 7, 2019 Resolve: 10-10072019 
 
Author:  Phil Crowell, Assistant City Manager  
 

Subject:  Feeding Auburn Initiative 
 
Information:  At the second reading for the FY20 Budget Resolve, the Mayor proposed adding $10,000 to the 
Mayor/Council Budget to reduce food insecurity in Auburn, which was passed by the city council. Staff has been 
considering various options for the funding and we propose establishing community microgrants.  
 
September 9, 2019 a microgrant program was outlined to the council for consideration. The purpose of the Feeding 
Auburn microgrant is to provide small programming grants to community-based organizations to help “kick-start” efforts 
to address food insecurity in Auburn. Non-profit and community organizations may submit applications for grants up to 
$2,000 per project. As part of this initiative, the City and non-profit partners will offer support and capacity-building 
training to ensure that the efforts seeded by these grants may be sustained into the future. 
 
It was recommended by the city council the CDBG Citizen’s Advisory Committee along with four community members 
representing the microgrant target areas (youth, families, seniors, and the homeless) to participate in reviewing all 
applications and making the awards. Our goal will be to have the applications ready for community-based organizations 
before the end of October, we will schedule the pre-meeting in November, and the committee will make the awards by 
December.  
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: $10,000 has been appropriated in the FY20 budget for this project 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage of Resolve 10-10072019  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Budget approved on June 24, 2019; discussion was held during the 9/9/2019 City 
Council Workshop. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:              
 

Attachments:  

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

Microgrants to Address Food Insecurity 
 
 
The purpose of the Feeding Auburn microgrant is to provide small programming grants 
to community-based organizations to help “kick-start” efforts to address food insecurity in 
Auburn. Non-profit and community organizations may submit applications for grants up to 
$2,000 per project. As part of this initiative, the City and non-profit partners will offer support 
and capacity-building training to ensure that the efforts seeded by these grants may be 
sustained into the future. 
 
 
 
 

AWARDS & CATEGORIES 
Awards:      Nutrition and Food Security Categories: 
• $500 (one-time event)  
• $2,000 (small project) 

 
 

• Families 
• Seniors 
• Youth 
• Homeless 

 
ELIGIBILITY 
• Organizations must serve a public good within the City of Auburn 
• Projects must be connected to one of the categories listed above 
• Must have attended a pre-application workshop 

 
SELECTION PROCESS & CONSIDERATIONS 
• Must attend a pre-application workshop 
• Complete an application & submit project budget 
• Grant review process 
• Close-out reporting - submit a short report and receipts 
• Participate in project showcase event, date to be determined 

 
The Feeding Auburn microgrant team will prioritize projects that are collaborative, 
resourceful, and innovative. Applications should focus on a community approach that is 
more effective, equitable, or sustainable than existing approaches.  
 
PRE-APPLICATION WORKSHOPS 
Pre-application workshops will be held to walk organizations through the grant process 
and answer any questions about the process and program. All potential grantees must 
attend one session. Pre-application workshop date: TBD 
 
TO APPLY  
For more information or for application paperwork, please email: pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov. 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 10-10072019 
 

RESOLVE, that the City Council hereby supports the Feeding Auburn Initiative Microgrant Program 
 
Whereas, food system issues significantly affect the public health, land use, economy, and quality of 
life of Auburn citizens; and 
 
Whereas, food related concerns are prevalent in the country; and  
 
Whereas, the availability of nutritious food for all citizens is essential to the health and well-being of 
the community, and local government has a proper role to play in ensuring that all citizens have access 
to an adequate and nutritious food supply; and  
 
Whereas, the Auburn City Council has made the availability of microgrants as an opportunity to 
leverage funds for community based organizations which will help build sustainability to address food 
insecurity; and  
 
Now, therefore, be It Resolved that the Auburn City Council supports the microgrant program that 
was presented at the September 9, 2019 City Council Workshop, with the CDBG Citizen’s Advisory 
Committee along with four community members representing the microgrant target areas (youth, 
families, seniors, and the homeless) participating in reviewing all applications and making the 
microgrant awards. 

 



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   October 7, 2019 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (A). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 10-7-2019
	1  Info Sheet - NEW Maximums
	1a  Ordinance  New MAX
	1b  GA sign off
	2  Info Sheet - NAVC Land Swap Updates 2019
	2a  2181974D1-6 S+S
	2b  52402.00_ROW - Phase 1
	3  AGzone info sheet 10.7.19.2
	3a  Ag bulletin20farmland
	3b  Ag PBWorkshopII4_9_19 (003)
	4  Minutes 9-16-2019
	5  Info Sheet - Morris Auto
	5a  Morris Auto App
	5b  2019 Fire Inspections on Junkyards
	5c  ECD Memo Morris Auto Followup 9.30.19
	5d  Order  111-09162019 Morris Auto Parts Auto Junkyard
	6  Info Sheet Saint Dominic Academy
	6a  St. Doms fee waiver request
	6b  Order 114-10072019 St Doms Fee waiver
	7  Info sheet Microgrants
	7a  Feeding Auburn
	7b  RESOLVE 10-10072019 Microgrants
	8  Executive Session Info Sheet Personnel

